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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
SOUTH BEND DIVISION

CASE NUMBER

GEORGE SHOUN,

3:14-CV-00463-RLM-CAN

Plaintiff,
V.

BEST FORMED PLASTICS, INC.
Defendant.

BMEF IN SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS
PLAINTIFF'S AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
The Defendant, Best Formed Plastics, Inc. ("Defendant"), pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6) of

the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Rule 7-l(b) of the Local Rules of the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Indiana, respectfully submits its Brief in Support of
Defendant's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Amended Complaint for Damages ("Brief).
I. INTRODUCTION

Under § 102(d)(4)(B) of the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA"), employers are
permitted to gather disability information from current employees by (1) "conduct[ing] voluntary
medical examinations" or (2) "mak[ing] inquiries into the ability of an employee to perform jobrelated functions." See 42 U.S.C. § 12112(d)(4)(B); Kingston v. Ford Meter Box Co., 2009 U.S.

Dist. LEXIS 31710, at *24 (N.D. Ind. April 10, 2009). The ADA requires that the medical
information received through these examinations and inquiries be kept confidential by the

employer. See 42 U.S.C. § 12112(d)(4)(C); EEOC v. Thrivent Fin., 795 F. Supp. 2d 840, 844
(E.D. Wis. 2011). However, this confidentiality requirement does not apply when an employee
voluntarily discloses medical information to his employer "outside of the context of an
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authorized employment-related medical examination or inquiry." See EEOC v. C.R. Eng'g, Inc.,

644 F.3d 1028, 1047 (10th Cir. 2011). Rather, "if an employer discloses medical information
that was voluntarily offered by an employee - outside of the context of an authorized
employment-related medical examination or inquiry - then the employer is not subject to

liability under § 102(d) [of the ADA]." Id. This is true, even when the employee is later
required to disclose the medical information for employment-related reasons. On this point, this
Court has made clear that the fact that an employee has made a required disclosure of medical
information to his employer "doesn't transform a voluntary disclosure into one that resulted from
employer inquiry." See Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31710 at *32.

As demonstrated below, the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint fails to sufficiently allege
facts that would plausibly demonstrate that the Defendant's alleged disclosure was anything
more than a mere recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff voluntarily disclosed to the

Defendant and publicized to the world when he publicly filed his State Court Complaint five
days earlier. Therefore, this Court should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint, pursuant

to Rule 12(b)(6), because it fails to state a claim upon which relief may be granted under §

102(d)oftheADA.
II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND
The gravamen of the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint for Damages ("Amended

Complaint") is that the Defendant allegedly disclosed information about the Plaintiffs medical
condition and history to other persons in violation of § 102(d) of the Americans with Disabilities
' The Defendant disputes the veracity of the factual allegations that were made by the Plaintiff and which are
discussed in this Brief. However, for purposes of the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, this Court should assume that
the non-conclusory allegations in Plaintiffs Amended Complaint - and recited here - are true. See Trs. of Teamsters
Union No. 142 Pension Fund v. AJ & S Trucking, Inc., 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 7011, at *24 (N.D. Ind. Jan. 21,

2014) (stating that "[a] court deciding a Rule 12(b)(6) motion must accept 'the well-pleaded facts in the complaint
as true, but legal conclusions and conclusory allegations merely reciting elements of the claim are not entitled to this
presumption of truth.'").

case 3:14-cv-00463-RLM-CAN document 15 filed 05/16/14 page 3 of 14

Act ("ADA"). [See Doc. No. 11, ^ 20]. More specifically, the Plaintiff alleged that, on or about
March 9, 2012, he "was making an adjustment to a thermoforming machine while working for

the Defendant, when he lost his balance and fell, injuring his left shoulder." [See id. at ^ 12].
The Plaintiff also alleged that, following these events, the Defendant "prepared a written
accident report and notified the company's insurer.. .of the claim." [See id. at ^ 13]. In addition,
the Plaintiff alleged that one of the Defendant's officers - Ms. Jane Stewart - "closely directed

and monitored [the Plaintiff]'s medical treatment" and "questioned [the Plaintiff] about aspects
of his medical condition in an effort to accommodate his doctor's work restrictions." [See id. at
^ 15, 16]. The Plaintiff went on to allege that, "[a]s a consequence of these inquiries, Ms.
Stewart learned the nature and extent of [the Plaintiffj's left shoulder injury." [See id. at ^ 15].

In his Amended Complaint, the Plaintiff further alleged that the Defendant "was obligated to treat
this information as confidential and to refrain from disclosing it to other persons under 42

U.S.C.A. § 12112(d)(4)(C)." [See id.].
The Plaintiffs Amended Complaint, however, fails to mention that, on February 14,

2013, the Plaintiff publicly filed a complaint in the Elldiart Superior Court No. 4, under cause
number 20D04-1302-PL-00045, in which the Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant terminated the
Plaintiffs employment in retaliation for making a workers' compensation claim ("State Court
Complaint";. [See Doc. No. 11, Ex. A, ^ 4].2 In the State Court Complaint, the Plaintiff

voluntarily and publicly disclosed that:

2 When considermg a motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6), a court is permitted to take judicial notice of matters
outside of the pleadings. Patino v. City of Michigan, 2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 160021, at *3-4 (N.D. Ind. Nov. 8,
2013). For example, "[a] court may take judicial notice of matters of public record without converting a 12(b)(6)
motion into a motion for summary judgment." AJ & S Trucking, 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 7011 at *32 n.2.
Accordingly, the Defendant — contemporaneously with its Motion to Dismiss — also filed its Renewed Motion to
Take Judicial Notice of the Contents of Plaintiff's State Court Complaint, iu which the Defendant requested that this
Court take judicial notice of the contents of the complaint filed by the Plaintiff with the Elkhart Superior Court No. 4
on February 14, 2013, in cause number 20D04-1302-PL-00045, pursuant to Rule 201 of the Federal Rules of
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While employed [with the Defendant], Plaintiff sustained a work
related injury to his left shoulder on March 9, 2012 and reported
the injmy to the Defendant. Plaintiff underwent surgery on May
22, 2012 and returned to work on August 13, 2012.
[See id. at ^ 3]. Five days later, on February 19, 2013, the Plaintiff alleges that the Defendant through Ms. Stewart - posted a message on "her Facebook page," which stated in relevant part as
follows:
Isn't [sic] amazing how Jimmy experienced a 5 way heart bypass
just one month ago and is back to work, especially when you
consider George Shoun's shoulder injury kept him away from
work for 11 months and now he is trying to sue us.

[See Doc. No. 11, If 19]. The Plaintiff contends that this alleged disclosure violates the
confidentiality requirements of § 102(d) of the ADA. [See id. at ^ 20].
As demonstrated below, however, the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint has again failed to

sufficiently allege facts that would plausibly state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA, because
(A) the Defendant's alleged disclosure was a mere recitation of the same information the

Plaintiff voluntarily and publicly disclosed to the Defendant in the State Court Complaint that he
filed five days earlier; (B) the Plaintiff was neither required by law nor requested by the
Defendant to include any confidential medical information in the State Court Complaint; and (C)
the Plaintiff has failed to allege any facts that would plausibly demonstrate or lead to the
reasonable inference that he sustained a tangible injm-y as a result of the Defendant's mere

recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff had publicized to the world in the State Court
Complaint that he filed five days earlier.

Evidence. [See Doc. No. 13, Ex. A, ^ 4]. The Defendant is entitled to properly rely on this judicially noticeable
information in bringmg its motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6) without converting it to a motion for summary
judgment.

4
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Therefore, this Court should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint, because it fails

to state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA upon which relief may be granted.
III. LEGAL ARGUMENT

Rule 12(b)(6) provides that a party may move to dismiss for "failure to state a claim upon
which relief may be granted." FED. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). In addition. Rule 8 provides that the
complaint must contain "a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is
entitled to relief." Malibu Media, LLC v. Gilvin, 2014 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 40830, at *1 (N.D. Ind.
Mar. 26, 2014) (quoting FED. R. Civ, P. 8(a)(2)). However, "recitals of the elements of a cause
of action, supported by mere conclusory statements, do not suffice." Ashcroft v. Iqbal, 556 U.S.

662, 678 (2009) (citing Bell Ati. Corp. v. Twombty, 550 U.S. 544, 555 (2007)). As the Supreme
Court stated, "the tenet that a court must accept as true all of the allegations contained in a
complaint is inapplicable to legal conclusions." Id. Rather, "a complaint must contain sufficient
factual matter, accepted as true, to 'state a claim to relief that is plausible on its face.'" Id.
(quoting Twombty, 550 U.S. at 570). A complaint is facially plausible if a court can reasonably
infer from factual content in the pleading that the defendant is liable for the alleged wrongdoing.
Id. To be plausible, a complaint must provide enough facts to raise a reasonable expectation that
discovery will reveal evidence supporting the plaintiffs allegations. See Brooks v. Ross, 578

F.3d 574, 581 (7th Cir. 2009).
In order to state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA for the disclosure of confidential
medical information, the Plaintiff must allege facts showing that (1) the information that was
disclosed was "confidential"; (2) any medical information released was obtained through an
entrance exam or disability-related inquiry; and (3) he suffered a tangible injury as a result of the
disclosure of the confidential medical information. Franklin City v. Slidell, 936 F. Supp. 2d 691,
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710-11 (E.D. La. 2013). As demonstrated below, the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint fails to

plead sufficient facts to state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA. Accordingly, the Plaintiffs
Amended Complaint should be dismissed pursuant to Rule 12(b)(6).
A. The information allegedly disclosed by the Defendant was nothing more than
a mere recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff had voluntarily

disclosed to the Defendant and publicly disclosed to the world in the State
Court Complaint that he filed five days earlier.

The confidentiality provisions of § 102(d) of the ADA and the accompanying regulations
do not apply when an employee voluntarily discloses medical information to an employer. See

Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31710 at *28. Under its plain meaning, § 102(d)(4) of the
ADA "protects only that information which an employer acquires through a medical inquiry or a
medical examination." Thrivent Fin., 795 F. Supp. 2d at 844. In fact, "if an employer discloses
medical information that was voluntarily offered by an employee - outside of the context of an
authorized employment-related medical examination or inquiry - then the employer is not

subject to liability under § 102(d) [of the ADA]." C.R. Eng'g, Inc., 644 F.3d at 1047.3 Once the
medical information is voluntarily disclosed by the employee, outside of the context of an
authorized employment-related medical examination or inquiry, the confidentiality requirements

of the ADA are rendered inapplicable to the voluntarily disclosed medical information, even
where the employee is later required to disclose the medical information for employment-related
reasons. In this regard, this Court has made clear that the fact that an employee has made a
required disclosure of medical information to his employer "doesn't transform a voluntary
disclosure into one that resulted from employer inquiry." See Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS

31710 at *32.
3 See also Wiggins v. DaVita Tidewater, LLC, 451 F. Supp. 2d 789, 801 (E.D. Va. 2006) (holding that the defendant
did not violate the ADA where the confidential medical information was not obtained through an employee health
program or employer-mandated medical examination).
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In his Amended Complaint, the Plaintiff alleged that the Defendant disclosed information
about the Plaintiffs medical condition in violation of the confidentiality requirements of §
102(d)(4) of the ADA. More specifically, the Plaintiff alleges that, on February 19, 2013, the
Defendant - through Ms. Stewart - posted a message to "her Facebook page," which stated in
relevant part as follows:
Isn't [sic] amazing how Jimmy experienced a 5 way heart bypass
just one month ago and is back to work, especially when you
consider George Shoun's shoulder injmy kept him away from
work for 11 months and now he is trying to sue us.
[See Doc. No. 11, H 17.]. However, the same information regarding the Plaintiffs medical

condition, which the Plaintiff alleges was publicly disclosed by the Defendant in violation of the
ADA, was voluntarily offered and publicly disclosed to the Defendant outside of the context of
an authorized employment-related medical examination or inquiry, when the Plaintiff filed his
State Court Complaint against the Defendant on Febmary 14, 2013. [See Doc. No. 8, Ex. A, ^

3.]. In particular, in his State Court Complaint, the Plaintiff voluntarily and publicly disclosed
that:
While employed [with the Defendant], Plaintiff sustained a work
related injury to his left shoulder on March 9, 2012 and reported
the injury to the Defendant. Plaintiff underwent surgery on May
22, 2012 and returned to work on August 13, 2012.
[See id. at ^3.].
The Defendant's alleged disclosure, which the Plaintiff contends was in violation of the
confidentiality requirements of the ADA, was nothing more than a mere recitation of the same

information that the Plaintiff voluntarily disclosed to the Defendant and publicized to the world,
when he filed his State Court Complaint five days earlier. [Compare Doc. No. 11, ^ 19; with
Doc. No. 13, Ex. A, ^ 3]. Since the medical information that allegedly was disclosed by the

case 3:14-cv-00463-RLM-CAN document 15 filed 05/16/14 page 8 of 14

Defendant had previously been voluntarily and publicly disclosed by the Plaintiff- in his State
Court Complaint and outside of the context of an authorized employment-related medical
examination or inquiry - the subsequent recitation of that same information by the Defendant
cannot constitute a violation of, nor subject the Defendant to liability under, the ADA. To hold

otherwise would prohibit the Defendant from freely discussing the allegations that the Plaintiff
expressly asserted against the Defendant in the State Court Complaint, and would even prohibit

the Defendant from sharing a copy of the publicly filed State Court Complaint, since such
conduct would subject the Defendant to liability for violating the confidentiality requirements
under the ADA. The confidentiality provisions of § 102(d) cannot be read so broadly as to
forever prohibit the Defendant from discussing the same information and allegations that the

Plaintiff has voluntarily and publicly disclosed in the State Court Complaint that he filed against
the Defendant. See Dean v. City of New Orleans, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 91099, at *56 (E.D.

La. July 2, 2012) (stating that § 102(d)(4) cannot be read so broadly as to protect "any disclosure
of [an employee's] medical information to an employer no matter how it arises").
The facts in this case are akin to those in Overnite Transportation and Kingston. In
Overmte Transportation, like the instant case, the disclosed information was not obtained fi-om
confidential medical records or examinations but, instead, was known to the employee's former
supervisor as a result of the employee openly talking about his injury and worker's compensation
claim to "everyone" such that it was "common knowledge." See EEOC v. Overnite Transp. Co.,

2001 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 20535, at *7-8 (W.D. Va. Nov. 30, 2001).4 Similarly, in Kingston, the
employee's required submission of FMLA paperwork to his employer did not transform his

4 The Overnite Transp. court also noted, albeit in dicta, that the employee had implicitly consented to the disclosure
when he asked his former supervisor to act as a reference to him. See Overrule Transp., 2001 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
20535 at *8 n.2.
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"voluntary disclosure into one that resulted from employer inquiry." Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist.
LEXIS 31710 at * 29. The Kingston case demonstrates that, even if the Defendant acquired
medical information from the Plaintiff as a result of a medical inquiry, the information is not

subject to the confidentiality requirements of the ADA if the information was also voluntarily
disclosed by the employee. See Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31710 at *29.
In the present case, as explained above, the Defendant's alleged disclosure is nothing
more than a mere recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff voluntarily and publicly
disclosed in the State Court Complaint that he filed five days earlier. [See Doc. No. 11,^19]. In
fact, the content of the Defendant's alleged disclosure demonstrates that the information was

obtained from the face of the Plaintiffs publicly filed State Court Complaint. [See Doc. No. 13,
Ex. A, ^ 3 (stating that "George Shoun's shoulder injury kept him away from work.. .and now he

is trying to sue [the Defendant]")].
Accordingly, it is undisputed that the Plaintiff voluntarily disclosed to the Defendant, and
publicized to the world, certain medical information on February 14, 2013, when he publicly
filed his State Court Complaint. It is also undisputed that the Defendant's alleged disclosure on
February 19, 2013, was nothing more than a mere recitation of the same information that was
previously disclosed in the Plaintiffs State Court Complaint. Since the information that was

allegedly disclosed by the Defendant had previously been voluntarily and publicly disclosed outside of the context of an authorized employment-related medical examination or inquiry - by
the Plaintiff in his State Court Complaint, the subsequent recitation of that same information by
the Defendant cannot constitute a violation of, nor subject the Defendant to liability under, the
ADA.
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Therefore, this Court should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint, because it fails

to state a claim that the Defendant has violated the confidentiality provisions of § 102(d) of the
ADA.
B. The Plaintiff was not required by law nor requested by the Defendant to
include or publicly disclose any medical information in his State Court
Complaint in order to adequately state a claim alleging retaliatory
termination.

To the extent that the Plaintiff contends that he was forced to "choose between waiving

[his] right to avoid being publicly identified as having a disability and exercising [his]. . .right[ ]"
to bring a retaliatory discharge action, see Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31710 at *29-30, his
contention is without merit.
More specifically, unlike the line of cases in which the employees were required to
disclose medical information to their employers to receive FMLA benefits or accommodations,
see Doe v. U.S. Postal Serv., 317 F.3d 339, 345 (D.C. Cir. 2003), the Plaintiff "was not required

nor asked to make such [a] disclosure[ ]" by the Defendant when he decided to file a retaliatory
discharge action alleging that his employment was terminated as a result of making a worker's
compensation claim, see Wilier v. Tri-County Metro Transp. Dist. of Or., 2008 U.S. Dist.

LEXIS 63947, at *42-43 (D. Or. Aug. 19, 2008). Instead, the Plaintiff waived any right to
confidentiality when he voluntarily disclosed his medical information to the Defendant and the
world by publicly including it in his State Court Complaint without redacting it or tendering it on
light green paper.6 As such, the Plaintiff cannot contend that the Defendant impermissibly

5 See Phillips v. Cont'l Tire the Ams., LLC, 743 F.3d 475, 477 (7th Cir. 2014) (stating that to establish a retaliatory
discharge claim, a plaintiff must prove that (1) he was an employee before the injury, (2) he exercised a right
granted by the Worker's Compensation Act, and (3) he was discharged and that the discharge was causally related to
his pursuit of a claim under the Worker's Compensation Act).
See IND. TR. R. 5(G) (statmg that if a portion of a document contains mformation excluded from public access
pursuant to Administrative Rule 9(G)(1), the information shall be omitted or redacted from the filled document and
set forth on an accompanying document on light green paper conspicuously marked "Not for Public Access" or

10
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disclosed certain medical information pertaining to the Plaintiff, when the Plaintiff voluntarily
and publicly disclosed the same information to the Defendant and the world five days earlier.
See Medspan Shipping Servs., Ltd. v. Prudential Lines, Inc., 541 F. Supp. 1076, 1079 (E.D. Pa.

1982) (stating that "the complaint puts the parties and the world on notice" of the allegations).
Notably, unlike in Doe and its progeny, this result would not run counter to "Congress's
purposes in enacting the ADA, which was, at least in part, to permit employers to inquire into
employees' medical conditions in order to provide reasonable accommodations, while avoiding
subjecting employees to the 'blatant and subtle stigma" that attaches to 'being identified as

disabled.'" See Kingston, 2009 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 31710 at *31 (quoting Doe, 317 F.3d at 344).
Accordingly, the Plaintiff was not forced to choose between waiving his right to avoid

being publicly identified as having a disability and exercising his right to file a retaliatory
discharge action, because he was not required by law nor requested by the Defendant to publicly
include or disclose any medical information in his State Court Complaint. Therefore, this Court

should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint, because it fails to state a claim that the
Defendant has violated the confidentiality provisions of § 102(d) of the ADA.
C. The Plaintiff's Amended Complaint fails to allege any facts that would
plausibly demonstrate or lead to the reasonable inference that he sustained a
tangible injury as a result of the Defendant's disclosure of the same
information that the Plaintiff had publicized to the world five days earlier.

Even if the allegations in the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint sufficiently pled facts that
would plausibly demonstrate that the Defendant had disclosed confidential information in
violation of § 102(d) of the ADA, the Plaintiff has not alleged any facts that would plausibly

"Confidential"); see also IND. ADMIN. R. 9(G)(l)(b)(xi) (stating that information excluded from public access
includes all medical records "unless.. .released by the subject of such records").

7 See also Clay v. Credit Acceptance Corp. (In re Clay'), 2011 Bankr. LEXIS 1760, at 6 (E.D. Ky. Bankr. May 11,
2011) (stating that "[i]t is axiomatic that the simple filing of a notice in the state court action, by either party, would
put the whole world on notice").
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demonstrate that he sustained a "tangible injury" as a result of the Defendant's disclosure of
"confidential information." More specifically, in order to state a claim under § 102(d) of the
ADA, the employee must demonstrate "that the disclosed information was confidential and that
he suffered some kind of tangible injury as a result of the disclosure." McPherson v. 0 'Reilly
Auto, Inc., 491 F.3d 726, 732 (8th Cir. 2007). The "tangible injury" must be something other
than "the impermissible disclosure of medical information itself in order for the Plaintiff "to
recover damages for a violation of § 12112(d)." See 9-154 LARSON ON EMPLOYMENT

DISCRIMINATION § 154.07 n.70 (2014).
The Plaintiffs contention that he has sustained a "tangible injury" as a result of the
alleged disclosure of "confidential information" cannot reasonably be inferred from the
allegations contained in the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint. More specifically, in ruling on a
motion to dismiss, the court is only required to draw "reasonable inferences" in favor of the
plaintiff. Robinson v. Lake Minnehaha Owner's Ass'n, 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 175642, at * 6
(N.D. Ind. Dec. 12, 2012). In the present case, however, it cannot reasonably be inferred from

the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint that the Plaintiff has sustained a "tangible injury" - whether
in the form of "public scorn and ridicule"; "emotional distress, humiliation, and mental pain and
suffering"; or otherwise as alleged in conclusory fashion in his Amended Complaint - as a result
of the Defendant's mere recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff voluntarily disclosed
and publicized to the world five days earlier. [See Doc. No. 11, HIT 22-23]; see also Hernandez v.

Ciba-Geigy Corp. USA, 200 F.R.D. 285, 289 (S.D. Tex. 2001) (holding that plaintiffs' pleading
is defective under Rule 12(b)(6) because "no reasonable inference can be made with respect to
the injury element"). Moreover, the Defendant's mere recitation of the same information that the
Plaintiff has previously disclosed and publicized to the world cannot reasonably be considered a

12
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disclosure of "confidential information" that would give rise to a tangible injury to support a
claim under § 102(d) of the ADA. See McPherson, 491 F.3d at 732; cf. Brown v. Wabash Nat'l

Corp., 293 F. Supp. 2d 903, 905 (N.D. Ind. 2003) (stating that a plaintiff must demonstrate a
public disclosure of private facts to state a claim for invasion of privacy).

Accordingly, the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint lacks facial plausibility in that it fails to
allege sufficient facts from which it could reasonably be inferred that the Plaintiff could have
sustained a "tangible injury" as a result of the Defendant's mere recitation of the same

information that the Plaintiff voluntarily disclosed and publicized to the world in his State Court
Complaint five days earlier. Therefore, this Court should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended
Complaint, because it fails to state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA.
IV. CONCLUSION
For the reasons stated above, the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint fails to sufficiently

allege facts that would plausibly demonstrate that the Plaintiff is entitled to relief under § 102(d)
of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
More specifically, the Amended Complaint demonstrates that (A) the Defendant's alleged
disclosure was nothing more than a mere recitation of the same information the Plaintiff

voluntarily and publicly disclosed to the Defendant in the State Court Complaint that he filed
five days earlier, (B) the Plaintiff was neither required by law nor requested by the Defendant to
include or disclose any medical information in the State Court Complaint, and (C) the Plaintiff
has failed to allege any facts that would plausibly demonstrate that he has suffered a tangible
injury as a result of the Defendant's mere recitation of the same information that the Plaintiff had

publicized to the world in the State Court Complaint that he filed five days earlier.
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Therefore, this Court should dismiss the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint pursuant to Rule
12(b)(6), because it fails to state a claim under § 102(d) of the ADA.
Respectfully submitted,
/s/ Jonathan R. Slabaugh
SANDERS • PIANOWSKI, LLP Bradford R. Shively

300 Riverwalk Drive Attorney Number 28066-20
Elkhart, IN 46516 bshively@riverwalkla-w.com
Telephone: (574) 294-1499 Jonathan R. Slabaugh
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jslabaugh@riverwalklaw. corn
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